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The Caldwell County Courthouse is a two-story red-brick struc-
ture set upon a regular ashlar foundation. The building meas-
ures 74 by 69 feet, and has major entrances on the south and
east. A secondary entrance on the north provides access to the
ground floor and to the basement. Architect Middaugh's plans
provided for offices on the ground floor flanking a main north-
south corridor, and included a stairway on each side on the main
(south) entrance leading to the second story.

A large circuit court room with floor space of 55 by 60 feet
occupies the northwest portion of the second story. The judge's
rostrum is located on the west side of the room facing east. In
the rear of the court room along the west side of the building
is a judge's office and two jury rooms. In the southwest cor-
ner of the second story there is an office for the circuit clerk,
and on the southeast corner is a grand jury room and a small
waiting room.

The first story is 14 feet high, while the second is 22 feet

in height. The truncated hip-roof is covered with slate, and
a square-plan cupola with bell-dome roof occupies the center of
the roof. A balustrade on the roof deck surrounds the cupola.

On the north part of the basement to the left of the entrance
is located a boiler room, from which the building is heated by
steam. The remainder of the basement was used as a county jail
until a permanent facility was erected several years later.

The window arrangement of the Caldwell County Courthouse is quite
decorative. All upper-story windows exhibit rounded-arches of
stone. Ground floor windows have stone lintels. A one~over-one
light pattern is used throughout. Many of the windows in the
south towers use '"curved'" glass.

Curiously, the south and east facades exhibit decorative features
such as towers and porches, while the north and west elevations

are devoid of such elements. The east entranceway central pavillion
is buttressed by two flanking towers topped by bell-shaped pin-
nacles and hip-roof. Five independent attic windows appear on

this facade centered directly over the entranceway.
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CALDWELL COUNTY COURTHOUSE

The south (primary) facade faces the major business district
of Kingston. It is the most ornate in design. A pair of
windows, identical to those used throughout the structure,

- flank the central two-story stone entrance porch. The porch

itself is flanked by two tower elements running the height
of the building from the foundation to the roof. The towers
are semi-circular in plan with semi-conical roofs tied back
into the main roof. The porch between the towers has stone
access stairs arranged in concentric arcs of circles.

Although no extensive modification has been done to the Cald-
well County Courthouse, the east entrance has been bricked
up, and three windows installed in its place. The four clocks
in the cupola have been removed. There is some evidence that
the central portion of the east wall has been recently re-
tuckpointed. Interior floors of mosaic tile, stairways and
bannisters appear to be original. In general, the building
is quite well-preserved and function adequately as a county —
court facilitye '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Caldwell County Courthouse at Kingston, Missouri, is a
physical manifestation of the prosperity of a nineteenth cen-
tury Missouri agricultural county. The courthouse, built in
1898 after fire destroyed an earlier structure, illustrates

a pervasive assumption among Caldwell countians that their
wealth and security were assured. The building itself was a
monument to the affluence of Caldwell County and a belief
that the future of agriculture was bright. Local newspapers
consistently argued that Caldwell County was wortly of a mag-
nificent seat of justice and that a modest structure would
not suffice., This particular argument transcended the ration-
ale that a good courthouse was necessary only to protect rec-
ords and provide suitable court facilities, and suggests a
characteristic of the wealthy agrarian region in the opti-
mistic years of the late gilded age.

Caldwell County enjoyed a healthy economy during the 1890's.
It was strictly a rural county, but her farms were large and
taxable wealth was great. The average Caldwell. County farm
in 1896 contained 133 acres of tillable ground, but only 1l

Missouri counties had a higher figure. (United States De-

partment of the Interior, Census Division: Report on Farms
and Homes in the United States at the Eleventh Census: 1890,

1896, p. 158.) Furthermore, 1,359 of Caldwell's 1,931 farms
were owner-operated, and only 26% of owners had a lein on their
property. (Report on Farms and Homes: 1890, pp. 158, 305.)

Caldwell's 1,931 farms produced a marketable surplus of $1,382,310

during 1889, and the county's assessable valuation was in ex-
cess of five-million dollars ranking her 34th of Missouri's
114 counties. (United States Department of the Interior, Cen-
sus Division: Report on Wealth, Debt, and Taxation at the
Eleventh Censusj 1890, 1895, p. 229. Fourteenth Annual Report
of the Bureau of Labor Statistics and Inspection of the State
of Missouri, 1892, p. 106.) In a county whose population num-
bered slightly over 15,000, the per-capita wealth was there-
fore nearly $333.
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Since Caldwell was a rural county whose largest town contained
only 1,800 inhabitants, public expenditures were small. The
county spent only 83¢ per-capita on public improvements during
1890 and therefore ranked lowest in the state in this particu-
lar index. (This figure suggests the primary county expenses
were courthouse maintenance and schools. Report on Wealth, Debt,
and Taxation; 1890, 1895, p. 532.) Furthermore Caldwell County
was entirely free of debt from 1890 through 1898, and in 1890
boasted a~$20,000 treasury surplus. (Report on Wealth, Debt,
and Taxation:; 1890, 1895, p. 494. Kingston Times, Kingston,
Mo., February 26, 1897). '

During the campaign of 1896, Caldwell County newspapers supported
Republican Candidate William McKinley particularly because of
his interest in higher tariff legislation. McKinley's promise

of higher agricultural duties prompted one editor to comment

that with the Republican election, the "agricultural interests

of the county have been well cared for," and that the tariff was
“certain to stimulate other trades." (Kingston Times, Kingston,
Mo., March 19, 1897; May 28, 1897; June &, 1897; July 24, 1897;
August 6, 1897, February 18, 1898.) Caldwell editors constantly
reitereated the theme of business and agricultural prosperity
and continually referred to the economy with such references as
"the skies are bright before us..." (Kingston Times, Kingston,
Mo., August 13, 1897). Kingston, the county seat, was especially
enraptured with McKinley prosperity. The Times editor boast-
fully announced the opening of new stores, the continued sta-
bility of Caldwell's banks, and the fact that vacant houses
were in great demand. ''The prospects are bright for Kingston"
proclaimes the Times. "“Hurrah for prosperity!' (Breckenridge
Bulletin, Breckenridge, Mo., February 19, 1897, March k&, 1398,
Kingston Times, Kingston, Mo., June 19, 1897; August 20, 1897;

June 10, 1898).
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o The qlg_ggurthouse at Kingston was destroyed by fire in Nov-

~enmber, 1898. (Caldwell County, Mo. Minutes of the County
Court, Record Book "M'", p. 11. The Hamiltonian, Hamilton, Mo.,
December 4, 1896). The loss of the courthouse, occuring in a
"boom" period, afforded Caldwell citizens an opportunity to erect
a monument to their prosperity. Caldwell was free of debt,
and construction of a magnificent edifice was to be "a measly
concern" to such an affluent people. (Breckenridge Bulletin,
Breckenridge, Mo., February 19, 1897, March 19, 1897. Kings~
ton Times, Kingston, Mo., February 26, 1897.)

The County is certainly rich enough to build a struc-
ture that will be a county pride, a thing of beauty
and joy forever...(The Hamiltonian, Hamilton, Mo.,
December 4, 1896.)

This is one of the best counties in the state. Its
citizens are enterprising and industrious...And where
is the farm in Caldwell County that would not be worth
a hundred times more than the amount of taxes to be
paid, with a good courthouse at the County seat.
(Brec?enridge Bulletin, Breckenridge, Mo., February 19,
1897. : :

The Caldwell County Court called a special bond election for
February 27, 1897, but the proposal was narrowly defeated be-
cause of a rumor that Hamilton businessmen would donate a new
courthouse in their town if the bonds were rejected. (Brecken-
ridge Bulletin, Breckenridge, Mo., February 12, 1897, March 5,
1897, Kingston Times, Kingston, Mo., March 5, 1897. Hamilton
Farmers' Advocate, Hamilton, Mo., March 3, 1897). Although
this supposition was merely a rumor, it was not until March 5,
1898, that a second election was ordered. This proposal carried
by a substantial margin and allowed the county to issue $26,000
in revenue bonds. (Caldwell County, Mo., Minutes of the County
Court, Record Book "M", p. 349, Kingston Times, Kingston, Mo.,
March 11, 1898. The Hamiltonian, Hamilton, Mo,, March 11, 1898.
Hamilton Farmers' Advocate, Hamiltom, Mo., March 9, 1898.) The
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County Board of Township Trustees selected Kansas City Archi-
tect L. Grant Middaugh to design the new courthouse to be cone-

Structed at the site of the old, and instructed him to plan a

"'very respectable courthouse..." (Caldwell County, Mo., Minutes
of the County Court, Record Book "M," pp. 322, 323, 343. Kings-

ton Times, Kingston, Mo., March 25, 1898, May 6, 1898). 1In

the meantime, the county press had proclaimed that the new court-
house would provide '"mew activity" which "gives the promise of
unprecedented growth'". (Mirable Mercury, Mirable, Mo., June 10,

1898.)

Middaugh's design reflected the voters' concern that their court-
house be magnificent. The courthouse is one of the largest
buildings in the county. It is of solid masonry construction
and features a moderate display of architectural embellishment.
When construction commenced during the summer of 1898, the Court
authorized the contractor to purchase such materials for the
building as “copper for the cornice" at $400 , and to include
such features as "metal lath","metal lentels (sic)" for the
basement windows, and an "I-beam over the entrance'"., Caldwell
County, Mo., Minutes of the County Court, Record Book "M,"

pp. 385, 404, 411, 444, 461). The use of towers, curved windows,
an ornate cupola (which originally contained four clocks), and

a two-story semicircular stone entrance porch with a limestone
stairway demonstrates the theme of opulence expressed in the
courthouse, The construction of such a building was costly and
involved expensive, nonfunctional design, but nevertheless was

a physical manifestation of the pride and prosperity of Caldwell
County, Missouri in the last decade of the nineteenth century.
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The Caldwell County Courthouse at Kingston, Missouri, is a physical manifestation

of the prosperity of a nineteenth century Missouri agricultural county. The
courthouse, built in 1898 after fire destroyed an earlier structure, illustrates

a pervasive assumption among Caldwell Countians that their wealth and security

were assured. The building itself was a monument to the affluence of Caldwell
County and a belief that the future of agriculture was bright. Local newspapers
consistently argued that Caldwell County was worthy of a magnificent seat of justice
and that a modest structure would not suffice. This particular argument transcended
the rationale that a good courthouse was necessary only to protect records and
provide suitable court facilities, and suggests a characteristic of the wealthy
agrarian region in the optimistic years of the late gilded age.











































